
February 23, 2016                                               Minutes Regular Council Meeting                                                  Page 1 of 3 
 

MINUTES OF THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF SILVER CITY 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

Grant County Administration Center, 1400 Hwy. 180, Silver City, NM 
February 23, 2016, 6:00 p.m. 

 
Present:      Also Present:   
Michael S. Morones, Mayor    Alex C. Brown, Town Manager-Finance Director 
Cynthia Ann Bettison, District 1    Ann L. Mackie, Town Clerk  
Lynda D. Aiman-Smith, District 2   Robert L. Scavron, Town Attorney 
Jose A. Ray, Jr., District 3     
Guadalupe Cano, District 4     
 
              
1. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Mayor Morones called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
Councilor Aiman-Smith was present telephonically.   
 
2.  PROCLAMATIONS - None. 
 
3.  PUBLIC INPUT – Nancy Cliff recognized Mayor Morones' tenures as Mayor and Council member, and for his 
support of the Continental Divide Trail Gateway Community effort that helped Silver City achieve that significant 
milestone. She thanked him for his dedicated service and said they looked forward to working with him on trails issues 
once he returned to civilian life. Hueteotl Lopez thanked Mayor Morones and said he hoped to see him back in public 
office. He also commented on the marketing of smart meters, how harmful he thought they were, and he asked the 
Council to reconsider their decision and put it to a popular vote, etc. 
 
4.  COUNCIL COMMENTS - Mayor Morones said it was formally his last meeting barring staff bringing up a 
special meeting between now and when the next Mayor took office. He said he was only Mayor for 1 term and prior to 
that a Councilor for 2 terms, and it was a humbling and educational experience to do so. He said it was a wonderful 
community that was very broad, eclectic, and inclusive. He said there were lots of different ideas and different types of 
people, and that every single one of them were extremely important human beings and it was wonderful working with 
all of them. He said the biggest education for him was learning what the Town staff did for a large entity that provided 
many different services to the community, and the people involved in operating the Town were spectacular. He gave 
credit to management and the directors or the heads of the departments for the leadership and the culture they had 
created to allow for that type of service and the people they had. He commented how the Town handled the recession 
in a healthy manner and had been operating on a very small labor force; that it was understaffed in almost every 
department, and that they had trouble giving appropriate raises, but with that the Town still continued to give top notch 
service. He said as Mayor he heard most of the gripes, and that many were valid, but looking back he could see how 
few of those gripes were and how they related to the entire job that was being done. He said he was extremely 
impressed with what everybody had done and he named members of the Town staff that were present. He said that was 
the one thing he was most proud of, and that he was extremely comfortable with leaving it to the next Mayor. He said 
he had no fear and had the utmost confidence that their community would continue to thrive and do good work. He 
said it had been a wonderful community, that he was very humbled, and that he appreciated everybody that was there 
to support him. There was applause for Mayor Morones. 
 
The Councilors commented on the following: how the community was enriched by the many volunteers in the 
community, including the Mayor and Town Councilors; thanks were given to Mayor Morones for his service, his 
volunteerism; thanks were given to the veterans in the audience and for their service and sacrifice, including Councilor 
Jose Ray; sentiments and remarks on the passing of Alan Mong, a frequent attendee of the Council meetings, one of 
the Town's election workers, and a volunteer in the community; an upcoming workshop called "Do you qualify for a 
LEDA grant?" that would be held on March 15, 2016 at the Small Business Development Office at Watts Hall; thanks 
to the Mayor for being even tempered, open minded, and inclusive, and that he was a role model for all future Mayors 
to emulate; people were encouraged to vote for Mayor and the 2 Councilor positions, and it was also said in Spanish; 



February 23, 2016                                               Minutes Regular Council Meeting                                                  Page 2 of 3 
 

how people wanted the lights downtown to be brighter so they would feel more safe downtown; a question as to why 
some restaurants were not open on Sundays; a question to Manager Brown to ask if flags could be put up at Gough 
Park, and Manager Brown said yes; how Silver City was unique because the Council got along with Mayor Morones 
because he was a good leader and the new Mayor would have to do a lot of work to do the same thing; and how 
February 26th was the last day to early vote at City Hall and that the election would be on Tuesday, March 1, 2016 at 
the Silver City Woman's Club. 
 
5.  CHANGES TO AGENDA – None. 
 
6.    APPROVAL OF MINUTES - Regular Meeting on February 9, 2016 - Councilor Bettison moved to approve 
the minutes of the Regular Council Meeting of the Town of Silver City on February 9, 2016. Councilor Cano 
seconded. Mayor Morones stated there was a motion and a second to approve the minutes of the Regular Meeting of 
February 9, 2016. He asked for a vote of all those in favor, and all 4 Councilors said aye. He asked if any were 
opposed, and there were none. Motion carried. 
 
7.   REPORTS 
A. Silver City Arts and Cultural District's Second Quarter Tourism Report.  Lee Gruber thanked Mayor Morones 
for his service and thanked him for his support. She introduced Callie Kennington as the new Executive Director. Ms. 
Kennington said she had received a warm welcome by the community and looked forward to working with the Town 
and the community on the Arts and Cultural District's Board. She said a new Americorp volunteer would be working in 
their office with the Continental Divide Trail group, and that they estimated there would be double the numbers of 
hikers during the year on the Continental Divide Trail. She said the celebration of Silver City being a Gateway 
Community would be in April. There was further discussion about the number of visitors; how the Western New 
Mexico Museum was still open during its renovation; an upcoming Town forum on March 15th about marketing 
events and businesses; how 97 people came through the Visitor Center the previous Tuesday and 86 people came 
through on the previous Wednesday so there was a lot to be happy about; and how the ACD gave a quarterly report 
because they had a professional service contract with the Town. 
 
B. Staff reports.  Mr. Brown reported that the new animal control officer would start on February 29th; that the traffic 
light at the intersection of U.S. Highway 180 and 14th Street would be completed by the second week in March; that 
the lease for the water rights for the Town of Hurley would be on the next meeting agenda; and how a short term lease 
with Western New Mexico University for the operation of the golf course would be coming because Silver Fairways 
would stop operating on February 29th. 
 
Mayor Morones commented that the Silver City MainStreet Project would be opening up the Silco Theater on 
February 26th to the public so the community would have a second movie theater. He said it was great from an 
economic development stand point and that he hoped it would be a good economic generator for the future. 
 
Councilor Cano moved for short recess at 6:33 p.m. Councilor Bettison seconded. Mayor Morones said there was a 
motion and a second for a short recess. He asked for a vote of all those in favor, and all 4 Councilors said aye. Motion 
carried. The Mayor called the meeting back to order at 6:42 p.m. 
 
8.    PUBLIC HEARINGS - None. 
 
9.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS - None. 
  
10.  NEW BUSINESS - 
A. Approval / Disapproval of Resolution No. 2016-10: a Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Silver 
City supporting the naming of the Hudson Street Bridge located on Highway 90 in Silver City as "The Veterans 
Memorial Bridge". Councilor Ray said the local veterans asked him to do it and that it was a nice thing to do. He said 
they needed to do more things for the veterans and the bridge was a good place to start. He said he liked the name of it 
because it did not discriminate against anybody and it was for all veterans regardless of what branch they served in; 
that it was a good thing for Grant County and Silver City and he was honored to propose it. He repeated what he said 



February 23, 2016                                               Minutes Regular Council Meeting                                                  Page 3 of 3 
 

in Spanish. There was further discussion. Councilor Ray moved to approve Resolution No. 2016-10: a Resolution of 
the Town Council of the Town of Silver City supporting the naming of the Hudson Street Bridge located on Highway 
90 in Silver City as "The Veterans Memorial Bridge".  Councilor Cano seconded. Mayor Morones said there was a 
motion and a second for the approval of Resolution No. 2016-10: a Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of 
Silver City supporting the naming of the Hudson Street Bridge located on Highway 90 in Silver City as "The Veterans 
Memorial Bridge". Mayor Morones gave the floor to several veterans to make comments. The Mayor asked for a roll 
call vote. Councilor Cano voted aye; Councilor Ray voted aye; Councilor Aiman-Smith voted aye; and Councilor 
Bettison voted aye. Motion carried. 
 
B. Approval / Disapproval of Memorandum of Understanding Working Together Throughout the Promise 
Zone Term. Emily Schilling from the Southwest New Mexico Council of Governments (SWNMCOG) thanked Mayor 
Morones for his service and his support of the SWNMCOG. She said they had applied for the Promise Zone in two 
previous years and placed as runner-up and in third place. She said they would apply as a region. She said it was an 
initiative of President Obama to help the well being of children so they could grow up in a safe environment with 
above sub-standard housing, a quality education, and economic opportunities to keep kids in rural America. She 
thanked Police Chief Reynolds for being so supportive by providing a lot of information and statistics that were 
required for the application. She said all of the local governments were in support of it and Silver City had been 
supportive in previous years. There was further discussion. Councilor Bettison moved to approve a Memorandum of 
Understanding Working Together Throughout the Promise Zone Term. Councilor Ray seconded. Mayor Morones said 
there was a motion and a second for the approval of a Memorandum of Understanding Working Together Throughout 
the Promise Zone Term. There was no further discussion. He asked for a vote of all those in favor, and all 4 Councilors 
said aye. He asked if any were opposed, and there were none. Motion carried. 
 
11.  CEREMONY - Manager Brown honored Mayor Morones for his years of service (2010-2016). He stated on 
behalf of the community, the Town staff, and himself that he wanted to present the Mayor with an honorary gavel set.  
He said he appreciated working with the Mayor and that it had been an honor. Mayor Morones said it had been an 
absolute honor serving the community, and that everybody that he had any dealings with was extremely positive and 
worthwhile and worked towards the betterment of the community. He said he really appreciated it. 
 
12.  ADJOURNMENT – Mayor Morones asked for a motion to adjourn. Councilor Bettison moved to adjourn at 7:02 
your last meeting as mayor, and Councilor Ray seconded. Mayor Morones stated there was a motion and a second to 
adjourn. He asked for a vote of all those in favor, and all 4 Councilors said aye. He asked if any were opposed, and 
there were none. Motion carried. A reception to celebrate Mayor Morones' years of service followed the adjournment. 
 
 
       /s/ 
       ___________________________________ 
       Ken Ladner, Mayor 
 
       Attest: 
       /s/ 
       ___________________________________ 
       Ann L. Mackie, Town Clerk 


